Public Notice
Special Meeting of the Board of Directors of the
El Paso Area Transportation Services, Local Government Corporation
doing business as the El Paso Transportation Authority
Wednesday, December 10, 2025 - 01:00 PM Mountain Standard Time
Rio Grande Council of Governments

8037 Lockheed Drive, Suite 100 El Paso, Texas 79925

Texas Government Code, Section 551.127, authorizes a member or
employee of a governmental body to participate remotely in a meeting of
the governmental body through a videoconference call, in accordance
with that section. Some government officials may participate via
videoconference. In accordance with Texas Government Code Section
551.127(b), a quorum of the governmental body will be physically
present at the location identified above. Members of the public are
encouraged to watch the meetings online, at the links provided below.
Members of the public are also encouraged to participate in public
comments by calling the telephone number below. Members of the public
can participate and address the governmental body during any telephonic
or videoconference meeting.

To view the meeting live, visit El Paso County Texas Public Meetings
YouTube Channel at
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCiMSJrIbRPMdITh69bCmogQ

This agenda has been posted at
https://elpasotransportationauthority.org/board-meeting-minutes/ and at

December 10, 2025 1 of 40


https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCiMSJrIbRPMdlTh69bCmogQ
https://elpasotransportationauthority.org/board-meeting-minutes/

the administrative offices of the El Paso Transportation Authority,
located at 800 East Overland Avenue, Room 423, El Paso, TX 79901.

This meeting is subject to the Texas Open Meetings Act.

If you have any questions or need additional assistance, please contact
us at (915) 273-3838, TDD/TTY: 711 through the relay service.

Please place all electronic devices on silent mode to reduce disruption of the meeting.

AGENDA

Notice to the Public: All matters listed under the Consent Agenda will
be considered by the Board of Directors to be routine and will be
enacted by one motion in the form listed below. There will be no
separate discussion of these items unless members of the Board of
Directors or persons in the audience request that specific items be
moved from the Consent Agenda to the Regular Agenda for discussion
prior to the time the Board of Directors votes on the motion to adopt
the Consent Agenda.

All matters listed on the Consent Agenda and Regular Agenda may be
discussed in Closed Meeting at the discretion of the Board of Directors
and following verbal announcement, if an appropriate exception to
the open meeting requirement of the Texas Open Meetings Act is
applicable.

1. OPEN MEETING

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. PUBLIC COMMENT

December 10, 2025 2 of 40



4.

4.a

4.b

4.c

Public comment is allowed subject to the following restrictions:

» Speakers are allowed up to three (3) minutes each but may be limited
further at the discretion of the Chair.

* Members of the public wishing to provide comments must sign up no
later than 8:00 a.m. on the day of the meeting by emailing
agsanchez(@elpasotransportationauthority.org

* Members of the public may also submit their public comment
electronically to agsanchez(@elpasotransportationauthority.org and
the comment will be read during the open comment period or before
the appropriate agenda item, as requested in the email. Emails must be
received no later than 8:00 a.m. on the day of the meeting.

REGULAR AGENDA

Approve the December 2, 2025, ETA Minutes. (Presented by
Annette Gutierrez, Rio Grande Council of Governments Executive
Director, and Ana Q. Sanchez, Administrative Specialist, Senior)

Approve revisions to the bylaws to address representation on the
El Paso Metropolitan Planning Organization and formation of
committees of the El Paso Transportation Authority Board of
Directors and to forward recommendation regarding bylaws
approval to the El Paso County Commissioners Court. (Presented
by John Andoh, Executive Director)

Appoint John Andoh, El Paso County Director of Transit
Operations to represent the El Paso County Mass Transit Agency (
a County of El Paso Department) on the El Paso Metropolitan
Planning Organization (MPO) Policy Board. (Presented by Jackie
Butler, Chair)

December 10, 2025 3 0f40


aqsanchez@elpasotransportationauthority.org
mailto:aqsanchez@elpasotransportationauthority.org

4.d Appoint the Chair, Vice Chair and one voting member to the
Executive Committee and to approve the work program of the
Executive Committee. (Presented by Jackie Butler, Chair)

4.e Approve revised Capitalization Policy to increase threshold to
$10,000 per recent changes to 2 CFR 200. (Presented by John
Andoh, Executive Director)

5. CLOSED MEETING

The Meeting may be closed under the following Texas Government
Code of the Open Meetings Act for discussion as follows:

A. Attorney Consultation Code (§ 551.071)

B. Deliberations Regarding Real Property Code (§ 551.072)

C. Deliberations Regarding Personnel Matters Code (§ 551.074)

D. Deliberations Regarding Security Devices or Security Audit (§
551.076)

E. Deliberations Regarding Cybersecurity to Protect Critical
Infrastructure (§ 551.0761)

(Any final action as a result of this closed discussion will be held at
the opening of the meeting or at any subsequent meeting.)

5.a Discuss findings regarding persons necessary in the Closed
Meeting. (Presented by John Andoh, Executive Director)

6. REGULAR AGENDA CONTINUED

6.a Consider and take action on matters discussed in the Closed
Meeting.

7. ADJOURNMENT

December 10, 2025 4 of 40



EL PASO TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
December 10, 2025

SUBJECT:

Approve the December 2, 2025, ETA minutes. (Presented by Annette Gutierrez, Rio
Grande Council of Governments Executive Director and Ana Q. Sanchez,
Administrative Specialist, Senior)

INFORMATION:

Approval of the Minutes from the regular meeting of December 2, 2025.

ATTACHMENTS:

Minutes from December 2, 2025.

December 10, 2025 50f40

Item 4.a




Item 4.a

Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of the
El Paso Area Transportation Services, Local Government Corporation doing
business as the EI Paso Transportation Authority
Tuesday, December 2, 2025 - 01:30 P.M. Mountain Standard Time

Judge Alicia R. Chacon County Commissioners Courtroom 500 East San Antonio
Avenue, Room 303, El Paso, Texas 79901

MINUTES PREPARED BY ANA Q. SANCHEZ, ADMINISTRATIVE SPECIALIST, SENIOR ETA

1. Open Meeting
The El Paso Area Transportation Services Local Government Corporation meeting was called to order at
1:36 p.m. Members in attendance were:

Chair- Commissioner Jackie Butler El Paso County Present
Arturo Rubio (Vice Chair) Horizon City Present
Joel Bishop El Paso County Present
Commissioner David Stout El Paso County Present
Andrea Carrillo Village of Vinton Present
Eddie Conde City of San Elizario Present
Arnulfo “Arnie” Castaneda Town of Anthony Absent
Alderman Daniel Vallejo Town of Clint (virtual) Present
Ex Officio Members

Karl Rimkus Sun Metro Present
Xavier Bafiales WTEP Present
Harrison Plourde El Paso MPO (virtual) Present
Alejandra Valadez City of Socorro Absent

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
3. PUBLIC COMMENT

No members of the public provided comment.

ETA BOARD MEETING 12-2-25

December 10, 2025 6 of 40



Item 4.a

4. PRESENTATION

4.a A certificate to Transdev’s employee of the month for October to Jesus Gameroz. In
November 2025, the distinction was presented to Aurelia Valverde. Commissioner Jackie
Butler, John Andoh, ETA Executive Director, and Jennifer Garcia, Transdev presented the
awards.

NO ACTION

5. CONSENT AGENDA
Agenda items 5a through 5e were considered under the consent agenda. MOTION: TO APPROVE
AGENDA ITEMS 5A THROUGH 5E AS PRESENTED.

Motion by: Commissioner Jackie Butler Seconded by: Andrea Carrillo

Members Voting Aye: Commissioner Jackie Butler, Joel Bishop, Commissioner David Stout, Arturo
Rubio, Andrea Carrillo, Eddie Conde, and Alderman Daniel Vallejo.

7. EXECUTIVE SESSION
MOTION TO MOVE INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION:

Motion by: Commissioner Jackie Butler Seconded by: Andrea Carrillo

Members Voting Aye: Commissioner Jackie Butler, Joel Bishop, Commissioner David Stout,
Arturo Rubio, Andrea Carrillo, Eddie Conde, and Alderman Daniel Vallejo.

The Board went into Executive Session at 1:39 p.m. Only the voting members of the El Paso
Transportation Authority attended the executive session to discuss agenda items 7a through 7d.
pursuant to Texas Government Code Sections 551.071 and 551.074. ETA Board reconvened to
take official action.

7.a Consider and take action on matters discussed in closed session.

7.b Discuss findings regarding persons necessary in the Closed Meeting.
(Presented by John Andoh, Executive Director)

7.c Discuss El Paso Metropolitan Planning Organization bylaws changes (Presented
by Jackie Butler, Chair)

7.d Six-month evaluation of the Executive Director (Presented by Jackie Butler, Chair)

MOTION: TO RETURN TO OPEN SESSION AT 2:48 PM.
Motion by: Eddie Conde Seconded by: Art Rubio

Members Voting Aye: Commissioner Jackie Butler, Joel Bishop, Commissioner David Stout,
Arturo Rubio, Andrea Carrillo, Eddie Conde, and Alderman Daniel Vallejo.

ETA BOARD MEETING 12-2-25

December 10, 2025 7 of 40



Item 4.a

8. REGULAR AGENDA CONTINUED

8.a Consider action regarding El Paso Metropolitan Planning Organization bylaws changes,
including appointments, if necessary, to El Paso Metropolitan Planning Organization Policy
Board and Transportation Project Advisory Committee (TPAC). (Presented by Jackie
Butler, Chair)

NO ACTION

8.b Consider action regarding Executive Director’s six-month evaluation (Presented by Jackie
Butler, Chair)

MOTION: TO ACCEPT THE FAVORABLE SIX-MONTH EVALUATION OF MR. JOHN
ANDOH

Motion by: Commissioner Jackie Butler Seconded by: Joel Bishop

Members Voting Aye: Commissioner Jackie Butler, Joel Bishop, Commissioner David Stout,
Arturo Rubio, Andrea Carrillo, Eddie Conde, and Alderman Daniel Vallejo.

6. REGULAR AGENDA

6.a Presentation and acceptance of the Fiscal Years 2023 and 2024 Annual Audits.
(Presented by Gibson Ruddock Patterson, LLC)

MOTION: TO ACCEPT THE FISCAL YEARS 2023 AND 2024 ANNUAL AUDITS AS
PRESENTED.

Motion by: Commissioner Jackie Butler Seconded by: Andrea Carrillo

Members Voting Aye: Commissioner Jackie Butler, Joel Bishop, Commissioner David Stout,
Arturo Rubio, Andrea Carrillo, Eddie Conde, and Alderman Daniel Vallejo.

6.b Presentation from Far West Texas/El Paso Regional Transportation Coordination
Committee (WTEP) regarding the Regional Plan (Presented by Xavier Banlaes,
Chair of WTEP, Ex-officio Board Member)

NO ACTION

6.c Presentation regarding Task 10 - General Public Demand Response Transit Study (Presented
by Kelly Blume, Associate Research Scientist, Texas A & M Transportation Institute)
NO ACTION

6.d Discussion and possible action to approve Amendment #1 to Transdev Services, Inc. d/b/a
3
ETA BOARD MEETING 12-2-25

December 10, 2025 8 0f 40



Item 4.a

First Transit, Inc. for all transit services operating within El Paso County and recommend
approval to Commissioners’ Court pending legal review and to authorize the Executive
Director to execute the Amendment once finalized.
MOTION: TO APPROVE AMENDMENT #1 TO TRANSDEV SERVICES, INC.D/B/A FIRST
TRANIST, INC. FOR ALL SERVICES OPERATING WITHIN EL PASO COUNTY AND
RECOMMEND APPROVAL TO THE COMMISSIONERS’ COURT PENDING LEGAL
REVIEW AND TO AUTHORIZE THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO EXECUTE THE
AMENDMENT ONCE FINALIZED.

Motion by: Commissioner Jackie Butler Seconded by: Eddie Conde

Members Voting Aye: Commissioner Jackie Butler, Joel Bishop, Commissioner David Stout,
Arturo Rubio, Andrea Carrillo, Eddie Conde, and Alderman Daniel Vallejo.

6. Discussion and possible action to approve the Sole Source Agreement with EAN
Holdings, LLC pending legal review and to authorize the Executive Director to
execute the Agreement once finalized.

MOTION: TO APPROVE THE SOLE SOURCE AGREEMENT WITH EAN HOLDINGS,
LLC PENDING LEGAL REVIEW, AND TO AUTHORIZE THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
TO EXECUTE THE AGREEMENT ONCE FINALIZED.

Motion by: Commissioner Jackie Butler Seconded by: Andrea Carrillo

Members Voting Aye: Commissioner Jackie Butler, Joel Bishop, Commissioner David
Stout, Arturo Rubio, Andrea Carrillo, Eddie Conde, and Alderman Daniel Vallejo.

6.f Adoption of a Capitalization Policy. (Presented by John Andoh, Executive Director)
MOTION: TO ADOPT THE CAPITALIZATION POLICY AS PRESENTED.
Motion by: Andrea Carrillo Seconded by: Art Rubio

Members Voting Aye: Commissioner Jackie Butler, Joel Bishop, Commissioner David
Stout, Arturo Rubio, Andrea Carrillo, Eddie Conde, and Alderman Daniel Vallejo.

6.g Discussion and Possible action Regarding Executive Committee implementation
(Presented by John Andoh, Executive Director)

MOTION: TO APPROVE THE IMPLMENTATION OF THE COMMITTEE AS PRESENTED
BY MR. JOHN ANDOH

Motion by: Commissioner Jackie Butler Seconded by: Eddie Conde

Members Voting Aye: Commissioner Jackie Butler, Joel Bishop, Commissioner David Stout,

ETA BOARD MEETING 12-2-25

December 10, 2025 9 0of 40



Item 4.a

Arturo Rubio, Andrea Carrillo, Eddie Conde, and Alderman Daniel Vallejo.

6.h Discussion regarding allocation of Federal Transit Administration Sections 5307
and 5339 funding (Presented by Karl Rumcus, Special Projects Manager, Sun
Metro, Ex-officio Board Member)

NO ACTION

6.1 Discussion and possible action to recommend to the El Paso County Commissioners
Court to cancel the Purchase Order with Genfare in the amount of $154,870 and
redirect use of the funds towards a pilot zero fare program starting on January 1,
2026 through September 30, 2026 and reevaluation continuation of the program
during the Fiscal Year 2027 budget process (Presented by John Andoh, Executive
Director)

MOTION: TO CANCEL THE PURCHASE ORDER WITH GENFARE IN THE AMOUNT OF
$154,870 AND REDIRECT USE OF THE FUNDS TOWARDS A PILOT ZERO FARE
PROGRAM STARTING JANUARY 1, 2026, THROUGH SEPTEMBER 30, 2026, AND
REEVALUATION CONTINUATION OF THE PROGRAM DURING THE FISCAL YEAR
2027 BUDGET PROCESS.

Motion by: Commissioner David Stout Seconded by: Eddie Conde

Members Voting Aye: Commissioner Jackie Butler, Joel Bishop, Commissioner David
Stout, Arturo Rubio, Andrea Carrillo, Eddie Conde, and Alderman Daniel Vallejo.

6. Discussion, direction and recommendation to El Paso County Commissioners Court
regarding the electric bus pilot project with Texas Department of Transportation.
(Presented by John Andoh, Executive Director)

MOTION: TO ACCEPT THE RECOMMENDATION FROM MR. JOHN ANDOH, ETA
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, THAT AUTHORIZES HIM TO FORWARD A
RECOMMENDATION TO THE COMMISSIONERS’ COURT ON ETA’S REQUEST TO
UTILIZE THE NEVADA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION PROCUREMENT AND
TO PURCHASE VANCS AD TO CANCEL THE PURCHASE ORDER WITH ABC
COMPANIES.

Motion by: Commissioner Jackie Butler Seconded by: Eddie Conde

Members Voting Aye: Commissioner Jackie Butler, Joel Bishop, Commissioner David
Stout, Arturo Rubio, Andrea Carrillo, Eddie Conde, and Alderman Daniel Vallejo.

6.k Receive a report from the Executive Director regarding El Paso Transportation
Authority staff activities. (Presented by John Andoh, Executive Director)

NO ACTION
ETA BOARD MEETING 12-2-25

December 10, 2025 10 0of 40



Item 4.a
Receive report of Transdev's operations for the months of October and November 2025.

(Presented by Sylvia Balcazar, TransdevGeneral Manager)

NO ACTION

6.m Review long range calendar of agenda items for El Paso Transportation Authority and El
Paso County Commissioners Court. (Presented by John Andoh, Executive Director)

NO ACTION
9. ADJOURNMENT

MOTION: TO ADJOURN MEETING

Motion by: Commissioner Jackie Butler Seconded by: Commissioner David Stout

Members Voting Aye: Commissioner Jackie Butler, Joel Bishop, Commissioner David Stout,
Arturo Rubio, Andrea Carrillo, Eddie Conde, and Alderman Daniel Vallejo.

Meeting adjourned at 4:22 PM.

6
ETA BOARD MEETING 12-2-25

December 10, 2025 11 of 40



EL PASO TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
December 10, 2025

SUBJECT:

Approve revisions to the bylaws to address representation on the El Paso
Metropolitan Planning Organization and formation of committees of the El Paso
Transportation Authority Board of Directors and to forward recommendation regarding
bylaws approval to the El Paso County Commissioners Court. (Presented by John
Andoh, Executive Director)

INFORMATION:

As discussed at the El Paso Transportation Authority (ETA) Board of Directors meeting
on December 2, 2025, the Board of Directors directed staff to work with the ETA
Attorney and Chair to propose amendments to the ETA Bylaws due to changes to the El
Paso Metropolitan Planning Organization Bylaws (EPMPO) regarding quorum
requirements at their Policy Board meetings. The proposed changes to the Bylaws are
summarized below:

e Minor technical edits to ensure consistency with State law and eliminate
duplicative language.

e Appoint a Corporation Director or the Executive Director to serve as the
Corporation's representative to the El Paso Metropolitan Planning Organization -
Transportation Policy Board. The representative shall be a duly serving member
of the Corporation Board of Directors or the Corporation’'s Executive Director.

e Allow for the formation of advisory committees, as approved by the Board of
Directors.

Upon the Board of Directors approval, the ETA Bylaws will be forwarded to the El Paso

County Commissioners Court for adoption at the December 15, 2025 meeting. Once
adopted, all member agencies will be provided copies of the updated ETA Bylaws.

ATTACHMENTS:

e Track Changes of ETA Bylaws
e EPMPO Bylaws Changes

December 10, 2025 12 of 40

Item 4.b




_____ARTICLE I1l. MEMBERSHIP

The TPB shall be composed of members from the local Texas and New Mexico units of
government, including the Texas and New Mexico Legislative Delegation and the Texas and New
Mexico Departments of Transportation within the El Paso Metropolitan Planning Area. In addition,
the Sun Metro Mass Transit Departrment, Ageney-and the El Paso County Mass Transit Agency or
the County-wide Mass Transit Authority will be represented on the TPB. The TPB shall also

include a non-voting, non-member representative from Ciudad Juadrez, Chihuahua, Mexico.

Membership shall consist of the following-but-netby-way-efHmitation:

Texas:

Town of Anthony 1 Elected Official; Mayor or Appointee

City of El Paso 6 Members; Mayor or Appointee + no less than 3
Elected Officials

Town of Clint 1 Elected Official; Mayor or Appointee

County of El Paso 2 Elected Officials; County Judge or Appointee

Town of Horizon City 1 Elected Official; Mayor or Appointee

City of San Elizario 1 Elected Official; Mayor or Appointee

City of Socorro 1 Elected Official; Mayor or Appointee

Village of Vinton 1 Elected Official; Mayor or Appointee

Texas State Senator(s) All Elected Officials from the El Paso MPA

Texas State Representative(s) All Elected Officials infrom the El Paso MPA

El Paso International Airport 1 Member

El Paso County Transit Agency or

County-wide Mass Transit Authority 1 Member

Sun Metro/ Mass Transit Department 1 Member

Texas Department of Transportation 1 Member

New Mexico:

City of Anthony, N.M. 1 Elected Official; Mayor or Appointee

Dofia Ana County 1 Member

City of Sunland Park, NM -1 Elected Official; Mayor or Appointee

New Mexico State Representative(s) 1 Elected Official from the El Paso MPA New Mexico State

Senator 1 Elected Official from the El Paso MPA

New Mexico Dept. of Transportation 1 Member

The City of El Paso’s representation on the Transportation Policy Board shall be equal to
the number of incorporated Texas municipalities, cities, towns, or villages within the MPA who
have representation on the TPB.

Representatives of local units of government shall be appointed by and serve at the pleasure

of the appointing local units of government and may be a serving member on the governing body

Item 4.b

Page 3

December 10, 2025 13 0of 40




Item 4.b

they represent, so long as the number of serving members from a local unit of government does

not constitute a quorum of that government body. Any prior appointment to the TPB that resulted

in a quorum of another governmental body being part of the TPB shall be void. Said appointee(s)

shall provide to the Executive Director of the MPO a copy of the resolution appointing them prior

to participating in a meeting._

Page 4
December 10, 2025 14 of 40



BYLAWS OF EL PASO AREA TRANSPORTATION SERVICES, LGC d.b.a. EL PASO
TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

ARTICLEI
PURPOSES

Section 1.01. Purpose of the Corporation. El Paso Area Transportation Services, Local
Government Corporation (“LGC”), d.b.a. as El Paso Transportation Authority (the “Corporation”) is
organized for the purpose of encouraging and assisting local units of government to join and
cooperate with one another to provide and deliver regional multimodal transportation solutions for
the residents of areas of El Paso County outside of the jurisdiction of the City of El Paso Mass Transit
Department.

The Corporation shall have and exercise all of the rights, powers, privileges, authority, and
functions given by the general laws of the State of Texas to non-profit corporations incorporated
under the Local Government Corporation Act, including, without limitation, the Texas
Transportation Code Section 431.01, et seq., the Texas Nonprofit Corporation Law, Chapter 22,
Business Organizations Code, Section 22.001, et seq.

The Corporation shall not create a legal obligation for any Members, as defined in Article 3
or local units of government that are a Member of the Corporation (“Local Government Units”) save
and except with the express consent of a Member or Local Government Unit. The Corporation shall
comply, when applicable, with all Federal Transit Administration (“FTA”), Federal Highway
Administration (FHWA) and Texas Department of Transportation (“TxDOT”) requirements.

The Corporation shall have the power to acquire real property, subject to the approval of the
Board of Directors. The Corporation may, except as prohibited in any interlocal agreement with a
Local Government Unit, contract with any qualified and appropriate person, association, corporation
or governmental entity to acquire personal property or to perform and discharge designated tasks
which will aid or assist the Corporation in the performance of its duties.

The Corporation shall have the power to accept any contribution or donation from any source
and shall have the power to request and accept any appropriation, grant, or other form of aid from
the Federal government or the State of Texas or from any other source.

ARTICLE Il
AUTHORITY AND DUTIES OF THE CORPORATION

Section 2.01. Board Functions and Authority. In order for the Corporation to accomplish its
objectives and purposes, the Board of Directors shall perform the following functions:

Adopt and revise the Bylaws of the Corporation.

Elect Corporation Officers.

Adopt an Annual Budget.

Appoint a Corporation Director or the Executive Director to serve as the Corporation's

representative to the El Paso Metropolitan Planning Organization - Transportation
1

eo o

December 10, 2025

15 of 40

Item 4.b




Policy Board. The representative shall be a duly serving member of the Corporation
Board of Directors or the Corporation's Executive Director.
e. Hire and Dismiss an Executive Director.

In addition to the above functions, the Board of Directors has the authority to:

a. Prepare periodic reports as may be required by the Bylaws of the Corporation and
Federal and State legislation or regulations.

b. Receive and expend gifts, contributions, and donations which may be made to the
Corporation to accomplish its purposes.

c. Apply and contract for, receive and expend for Corporation purposes, funds or grants
from the State of Texas, the Federal government, or any other source.

d. Receive and expend funds from Corporation Members, as provided in these Bylaws, to
finance the cost of operations, except that the Corporation shall not have the authority to
levy taxes of any kind.

e. Coordinate and assist in planning and development for countywide public transit and
provide assistance to Local Government Units in the implementation of their planning
and operations.

ARTICLE I
MEMBERS

Section 3.01. Membership of the Corporation. Eligible Local Government Units within El
Paso County may become members of the Corporation by passage of an ordinance, minute order,
resolution or other appropriate and legal action of the governing body of such Local Government
Unit adopting these Bylaws and appropriating the funds required to pay their share of the annual dues
of the Corporation as set forth by Article VII of these Bylaws.

Local Government Units eligible to become members of the Corporation shall be:

a. Incorporated cities and towns within El Paso County.

b. Independent and Common School Districts, Junior College Districts.

c. Sovereign Indian Nations recognized by the United States of America Government.

d. A Mass Transit Department governed by Texas Transportation Code, Section 453 within
El Paso County.

A Member of the Corporation may, by ordinance, minute order, resolution or other
appropriate legal action of that governing body, withdraw from the Corporation which shall take
effect within 365 calendar days after notice of withdrawal. Local Government Units which withdraw
from the Corporation may subsequently apply for readmission as new members. In the event of
withdrawal by a Member of the Corporation, said Member shall not be entitled to a return of any
portion of previously paid annual dues.

Advisory membership in the Corporation may be permitted by action of the Board of Directors.

In no event shall advisory membership be entitled to voting representation in the Board of Directors
of the Corporation.

December 10, 2025

16 of 40

Item 4.b




ARTICLE IV
DIRECTORS

Section 4.01. Board of Directors. All powers of the Corporation shall be vested in the Board
of Directors. The number of Directors shall be consistent with the number of Local Government
Units that have joined the Corporation. Each Local Government Unit shall have one primary
Director and one alternate Director whom shall by appointed by that Local Government Unit by an
ordinance, minute order, resolution or other appropriate legal action of that governing body, except
El Paso County, whom shall appoint at least three Directors to the Corporation of which, one of
those Directors shall serve as the Chair of the Board of Directors. El Paso County shall unilaterally
adopt the appropriate criteria for the Chair serving in that capacity. Any Members added, in
accordance with Article III of these Bylaws and excluding advisory membership, shall be entitled
to appoint one primary Director and one alternate Director to represent their Local Government
Unit on the Board of Directors.

Section 4.02. Appointment of Board Director. Each Director, with exception of the Chair
and El Paso County’s appointees, must be an employee or contracted consultant of the appointing
Local Government Unit. Additionally, each Director, with exception of the Chair and El Paso
County's appointees, shall not be a member of the Local Government Unit’s governing body unless
approved by the Board of Directors for unusual circumstances. Any Director may be removed from
office at any time, with or without cause, by the Local Government Unit which appointed that
Director.

Section 4.03. Terms of Board Member. At the first annual meeting, the Directors shall be
divided into three equal groups and designated by the Board of Directors to serve one, two, or three
year terms. Thereafter, the term of office of each Director shall be two years. Each Director,
including a Director elected to fill a vacancy, shall hold office until the expiration of the term for
which he or she was elected and until the election and qualification of a successor, or until that
Director’s earlier resignation or removal in accordance with these Bylaws. Upon the expiration of
the term of office of any such Director appointed by resolution of the appointing Local Government
Unit, or upon removal or resignation of such Direction, the applicable Local Government Unit shall
appoint a successor Director, and the term of office for each such successor Director shall also be
two years.

Section 4.04. Removal, Resignation and Successor of Board Member. Notwithstanding
anything to the contrary in these Bylaws, each Director serves at the pleasure of Corporation. The
removal of any Director shall be for cause and shall be by a majority vote of the entire Board.

To the extent allowed under Texas Constitution Article. XVI, §17 (Officers to Serve Until
Successors Qualified), in the event that a Director resigns, is removed or, is separated from his or
her employment by their appointing Local Government Unit or, otherwise is no longer qualified to
serve as a Director, then such Director shall be considered removed from the Board of Directors and
the Local Government Unit that appointed the Director shall provide for the appointment of a new
Director to complete the unexpired term of such Director.

3

December 10, 2025

17 of 40

Item 4.b




Any Director or officer may resign at any time. Such resignations shall be made in writing
and shall take effect at the time specified therein, or, if no time be specified, at the time of'its receipt
by the Chair or Secretary. The acceptance of a resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective,
unless expressly so provided in the resignation.

Section 4.05. Vacancies on the Board of Directors. Vacancies on the Board of Directors
shall be filled by the Local Government Unit affiliated with that vacancy. An interim appointment
may be made by the Local Government Unit affiliated with that vacancy.

Section 4.06. Meetings of the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors may hold their
meetings and may have an office and keep the books of the Corporation at such place or places as
the Board of Directors may from time to time determine: provided, however, in the absence of any
such determination, such places shall be the registered office of the Corporation in the State of
Texas.

The Board of Directors shall meet in accordance with and file notices of each meeting as
required by Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code (the "Open Meetings Act"). Committees
of the Board of Directors shall be advisory only and shall comply with the Open Meetings Act to
the extent required by law.

Section 4.07. Annual Meeting. The annual meeting shall be held on the first board meeting
after October 1, which is also the start of the Federal fiscal year, or as soon as practicable thereafter.

Section 4.08. Regular Meetings. Regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held
at least ten times per year, or as needed.

Section 4.9. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held
whenever called by the Chair or by a majority of the Directors and shall be in accordance with the
provisions of the Texas Open Meetings Act.

Each Director shall be given reasonable notice of each special meeting in person by
telephone, electronic transmission (e.g., facsimile transmission or electronic mail) or mail as defined
by the Texas Open Meeting Act. Unless otherwise indicated in the notice thereof, any and all matters
pertaining to the purposes of the Corporation may be considered and acted upon at a special meeting.

Section 4.10. Quorum. A majority of the Board of Directors (which must include at least
one El Paso County Director) shall constitute a quorum for the consideration of matters pertaining
to the purposes of the Corporation. The act of a majority of the Directors present (which must include
at least one El Paso County Director) and voting at a meeting at which a quorum is in attendance
shall constitute the act of the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors shall exercise a one person-
one vote policy for the membership that he or she represents. The Chair shall only exercise voting
privileges in the event of a tie or as explicitly required by these Bylaws.

The affirmative votes of all Directors shall be required to approve the following:

December 10, 2025

<

Item 4.b

{Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.19", First line: 0.38"

18 of 40




1. The amendment of the Articles of Incorporation; and
2. The amendment of these Bylaws.

Section 4.11. Conduct of Business. At the meetings of the Board of Directors, matters
pertaining to the purposes of the Corporation shall be considered in such order as from time to time
the Board of Directors may determine.

At all meetings of the Board of Directors, the Chair shall preside, and in the absence of the
Chair, the Vice-Chair shall preside. In the absence of the Chair and the Vice- Chair, an acting
presiding officer shall be chosen by the Board of Directors from among the Directors present.

The Secretary of the Corporation shall act as secretary of all meetings of the Board of
Directors, but in the absence of the Secretary, the presiding officer may appoint any person to act as
secretary of the meeting. The Secretary of the Corporation shall be a staff member designated by the
Executive Director.

Section 4.12. Mandatory Ethics, Open Meetings Act, and Public Information Act
Training. In accordance with Texas Statutes, the following trainings must be completed prior to
appointment to the Board of Directors.

1. Ethics Training
2. Public Information Act — Texas Attorney General Public Information Act
3. Open Meetings Act — Texas Attorney General Open Meetings Act.

Section 4.13. Non-Attendance of Board Meetings. A Director who misses four or more
consecutive meetings of the Corporation in any calendar year may be dropped from the Board of
Directors unless the Directors votes, by an affirmative vote of a simple majority of the Board of
Directors voting members present at a meeting at which a quorum has been met, that the Director
should be retained as a voting member because the absences were due to extraordinary or extenuating
circumstances. Retaining the Director shall be placed on the agenda for the next meeting of the
Corporation, after the non-attendance issue has been identified. Participation of a designated
alternate is counted as attendance. If the Board of Directors votes to remove a Director in accordance
with this provision, the Corporation shall send written notice as soon as possible following the vote,
so that the Local Government Unit can appoint an individual to replace the Director.

Section 4.14. Compensation of Directors; Reimbursement for Expenses. Directors shall
not receive any salary or compensation for their services as a Director. Directors shall be reimbursed
for their actual expenses incurred in the performance of their duties as a Director.

Section 4.15. Director’s Liability. No Director shall be liable to the Corporation for
monetary damages for an act or mission in the Director’s capacity as a Director, except as is
authorized by Texas or Federal law for public officials of a Texas governmental entity.

Section 4.16 Director’s Reliance on Consultant Information. Unless there is an
established rule of law to the contrary, a Director shall not be liable if while acting in good faith and
with ordinary care, the Director relies on information, opinions, reports, or statements, including
financial statements and other financial data concerning the Corporation or another person that was

5

December 10, 2025

19 of 40

Item 4.b



https://www.texasattorneygeneral.gov/og/open-government-training
https://www.texasattorneygeneral.gov/og/open-government-training

prepared or presented by:

a. one or more Officers or Directors of the Corporation or employees of the Members or
Local Government Units; or

b. legal counsel, public accountants, or other people, as to matter the Director reasonably
believes they are within the person’s professional or expert competence.

ARTICLEV
OFFICERS

Section 5.01. Titles and Term of Office. The Officers of the Corporation shall be a Chair,
a Vice-Chair, and other Officers as designated by the Board of Directors may be elected at the annual
meeting. The initial term of the Officers of the Corporation shall be two years. Any vacancy in the
office of an Officer shall be filled by a majority vote of the Board.

Section 5.02. Powers and Duties of the Chair. The Chair shall be appointed by the El Paso
County Commissioners’ Court and shall preside at all meetings of the Board of Directors and shall
work closely with the Executive Director to ensure the efficient execution of the business of the
Corporation. In furtherance of the purposes of the Corporation and subject to the limitations
contained in the Articles of Incorporation, the Chair, Vice-Chair or Executive Director may sign and
execute all bonds, notes, deeds, conveyances, franchises, assignments, mortgages, notes, contracts
and other obligations in the name of the Corporation as approved by the Board of Directors. The
Chair shall have such other duties as are assigned by the Board of Directors. The Chair may call
special meetings of the Board of Directors. The Chair shall have the authority to make appointments
to Ceommittees as provided in after giving due consideration to expressions of interest from other
Directors.

Section 5.03. Powers and Duties of the Vice-Chair. The Vice-Chair shall perform the
duties and exercise the powers of the Chair upon the Chair’s death, absence, disability, or
resignation, or upon the Chair’s inability to perform the duties of his or her office. Any action taken
by the Vice-Chair in the performance of the duties of the Chair shall be conclusive evidence of the
absence or inability to act of the Chair at the time such action was taken. The Vice-Chair shall have
such other powers and duties as may be assigned to him or her by the Board of Directors or the
Chair.

Section 5.04. Compensation of Officers. Officers are not entitled to compensation.

Section 5.05. Officer’s Liability. No Officer shall be liable to the Corporation for monetary
damages for an act or omission in the Officer’s capacity as an Officer, except as is authorized by
Texas or Federal law for public officials of a Texas Local Government Unit.

Section 5.06. Officer’s Reliance on Consultant Information. Unless there is an established
rule of law to the contrary, an Officer shall not be liable if while acting in good faith and with ordinary
care, the Officer relies on information, opinions, reports, or statements, including financial statements
and other financial data concerning the Corporation or another person that were prepared or presented

6

December 10, 2025

20 of 40

Item 4.b




by:

one or more other Officers or Directors of the Corporation or employees of the Members or
Local Government Units; or

legal counsel, public accountants, or other persons as to matters the Officer reasonably
believes are within the person’s professional or expert competence.

Section 5.07. Removal from Office. Any Officer may be removed from office at any time,

with or without cause, by the Board of Directors.

Section 5.08. Corporation Staff. Staff functions for the Corporation may be performed by

Corporation staff directly or El Paso County staff as defined by a Master Agreement between the
Corporation and El Paso County or by other consultants as approved by the Board of Directors.
Should the Corporation use El Paso County for administrative services, the Corporation shall pay
costs for such services as from time to time as billed by El Paso County.

The required Corporation staff functions shall include, but not be limited to, the following:

Secretary. The Secretary shall keep or cause to be kept the minutes of all meetings of the
Board of Directors in books provided for that purpose and he or she shall attend to the giving
and serving of all notices. He or she shall have charge of the Corporation’s books, records,
documents and instruments, except the books of account and financial records and securities
of which the Treasurer shall have custody and charge, and such other books and papers as the
Board of Directors may direct, all of which shall at all reasonable times be open to the
inspection of any Director upon application at the office of the Corporation during business
hours and he or she shall, in general, perform all duties incident to the office of Secretary
subject to the control of the Board of Directors.

Treasurer. The Treasurer shall have custody of all the funds and securities of the Corporation
which come into his or her hands. When necessary or proper, he or she may endorse, on behalf
of the Corporation, for collection, checks, notes and other obligations and shall deposit the
same to the credit of the Corporation in such bank or banks or depositories as shall be
designated in the manner prescribed by the Board of Directors; he or she may sign all receipts
and vouchers for payments made to the Corporation, either jointly with such other Officer
and/or the Executive Director, as is designated by the Board of Directors by Resolution;
whenever required by the Board of Directors, he or she shall render a statement of his or her
cash account; he or she shall enter or cause to be entered regularly in the books of the
Corporation to be kept by him or her for that purpose full and accurate accounts of all moneys
received and paid out on account of the Corporation; and he or she shall perform all acts
incident to the position of Treasurer subject to the control of the Board of Directors.

Executive Director. The Board of Directors may employ an Executive Director who will be
responsible for the administration of the Corporation under an approved annual budget by the
Board of Directors. Any obligations outside the budget shall be made only upon Board of

7

December 10, 2025

21 of 40

Item 4.b




Directors approval. The Executive Director shall continue to hold such position at the
discretion of the Board of Directors, and in accordance with the Three-Party Employment
Agreement with El Paso County, the Corporation, and the Executive Director. The Board of
Directors shall conduct an annual review of the performance of the Executive Director. The
employment or dismissal of the Executive Director shall require a majority vote of the total
voting membership of the Board of Directors and shall be done in accordance with the Three-
Party Employment Agreement with El Paso County, the Corporation, and the Executive
Director. All other staff shall be employed by and be responsible to the Executive Director.

ARTICLE VI
BUDGET AND FISCAL YEAR

Section 6.01. Fiscal Year. The fiscal year of the Corporation shall commence on October
1 of each year and end on September 30 of the following year. By September 30of each year, the
Board of Directors shall adopt a proposed budget of expected revenues and proposed expenditures
for the next ensuing fiscal year. The budget shall be considered adopted upon formal approval of
the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE VII
FINANCE

Section 7.01. Member Annual Dues. Upon recommendation of staff to the Board of
Directors, annual dues of the Members for the next ensuing fiscal year shall be adopted at the annual
meeting in October of each year, or as practicable thereafter. This action shall require a two-thirds
(2/3) majority of the voting representatives present and is tied directly to the implementation and
operation of Corporation operated transit services. The Corporation may rely on staff or consultant
support to determine the annual calculation of annual dues. This action shall require annual dues
to become due and payable on January 1 of each year. An eligible Local Government Unit joining
the Corporation during the year shall have its annual dues prorated to the nearest beginning month
for the remainder of the fiscal year. A Member that is more than six months in arrears in its dues
as set forth by the Board of Directors may be denied its voting privileges by action of the Board of
Directors until such time as dues are paid. A member which has more than one year in arrears in
its dues may be expelled by action of the Board of Directors. To allow for further project
development and collaboration, additional funds may be pledged by a Local Government Unit to
the Corporation for a specific project, service or purpose upon approval of the Board of Directors.
These projects and//or services are not subject to the payment deadlines or requirements otherwise
established by this Article as they are tied to specific milestones and other relevant deadlines. Such
services shall be defined in an Interlocal Agreement between the Member and the Corporation.

Section 7.02. Corporation Funds. Funds of the Corporation shall be deposited in a
depository to be designated at least every five (5) years by the Board of Directors. Funds may be
expended only for budgeted items approved by the Board of Directors. Payments are to be made
subject to the Financial Policies and Procurement Policies, as adopted or revised by the Board of
Directors.

ARTICLE VIII

December 10, 2025

22 of 40

Item 4.b




AUDIT AND ANNUAL REPORT

Section 8.01. Annual Audit. The Corporation shall have an annual audit performed by a
qualified independent auditor or auditing firm. This audit shall be performed soon after the conclusion
of the Corporation’s fiscal year. It shall be presented to the Board of Directors as well as each Local
Government Unit by January 31* of the following year as applicable and reflect the financial
accounts, transactions as well as progress of the Corporation of the preceding fiscal year.

ARTICLE IX
INDEMNIFICATION

Section 9.01. Indemnification. Given that the Corporation has been created as a local
government corporation pursuant to the Texas Transportation Code Chapter 431 and therefore is a
Texas governmental unit whose operations are all governmental and not proprietary functions for
any purposes, to the maximum extent allowed by Texas law for Local Government Units, the
Corporation may indemnify current and former Directors, Officers, and employees (“Indemnified
Person”) for acts and/or omissions that occur within the scope and course of their duties with the
Corporation.

Section 9.02. Insurance. The Corporation may purchase and maintain bonds and
insurance, at its expense, to protect itself and any Indemnified Person.

ARTICLE X
CODE OF ETHICS

Section 10.01. Policy and Purposes. It is the policy of the Corporation that Directors and
Officers conduct themselves in a manner consistent with sound business and ethical practices; that
the public interest always be considered in conducting corporate business; that the appearance of
impropriety be avoided to ensure and maintain the public confidence in the Corporation; and that the
Board of Directors establish policies to control and manage the affairs of the Corporation, fairly,
impartially, and without discrimination. The Code of Ethics attached as Exhibit A to the Bylaws has
been adopted as part of the Corporation’s Bylaws for the following purposes: (a) to encourage high
ethical standards in official conduct by Directors, Officers and staff; and (b) to establish guidelines
for such ethical standards of conduct.

Section 10.02. Unlawful Acts. In addition to any unethical conduct prohibited by Texas or
Federal law and/or regulation for a Texas governmental officer or public official, a Director or Officer
shall not intentionally or knowingly offer, confer or agree to confer on another, or solicit, or agree to
accept from another:

a. Any benefit as consideration for the Director or Officer’s decision, opinion,
recommendation, vote, or other exercise of discretion as a Director or officer; or

b. Any benefit as consideration for a violation of a duty imposed by law on the
Director or Officer.

ARTICLE XI

December 10, 2025

23 of 40

Item 4.b




ALLOCATION OF NET INCOME

Section 11.01. Income Generated by the Corporation. To allow for further project
development and collaboration, any net income of the Corporation identified at the end of the fiscal
year that is not needed to pay Corporation’s expenses or obligations may be used by the Corporation
for a specific project or purpose upon approval of the Board of Directors and incorporated into a
budget.

ARTICLE XII
MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

Section 12.01. Notice and Waiver of Notice. Whenever any notice is required to be given
under the provisions of these Bylaws, such notice shall be deemed to be sufficient if given by
depositing the same in a post office mailbox addressed to the Executive Director and Chair at the
address, as it appears on the books of the Corporation, and such notice shall be deemed to have been
given on the day of such mailing. A waiver of notice, signed by the person or persons entitled to said
notice, whether before or after the time stated therein, shall be deemed equivalent thereto.

Section 12.02. Amendments. A proposal to alter, amend, or repeal these Bylaws shall be
made by the affirmative vote of all the Directors at any annual or regular meeting, or at any special
meeting if notice of the proposed amendment be contained in the notice of said special meeting.
However, any proposed change or amendment to the Bylaws must be approved by the El Paso County
Commissioners Court to be effective after adopted by the Board of Directors.

Section 12.03. Gender. References herein to the masculine gender shall also refer to the
feminine in all appropriate cases, and vice versa.

Section 12.04. Committees. Committees may be created upon a majority vote of the Board

of Directors with a specific purpose and/or work plan to support the activities of the Corporation and
act as sub-section of the Board of Directors. Upon formation of the Committee by the Board of
Directors, the Chair shall appoint Directors to serve on any Committee. The Chair may appoint
advisory Directors and non-Board members to membership of any Committee, provided that the
majority of the membership of any Committee be voting Directors. No Committee shall have any
power to exercise discretion or perform any act for the Corporation, except with specific prior
approval of the Board of Directors. All Committees shall be advisory only as provided in Section
4.06 and shall comply with the Open Meetings Act to the extent required by law.

ARTICLE XlI11
DISSOLUTION

Section 13.01. Dissolution. If the Board of Directors determine by resolution that the
purposes for which the Corporation was formed have been substantially met and all bonds or notes
issued by and all obligations incurred by the Corporation or on behalf of the Corporation have been
fully paid, the Board of Directors shall execute a certificate of dissolution which states those facts
and declares the Corporation dissolved in accordance with the requirements of Chapter 431 of the
Transportation Corporation Act, or with applicable law then in existence.

10

December 10, 2025

Item 4.b

{ Formatted: Font: Bold

24 of 40




Section 13.02. Compliance with State Law. Subject to any restrictions contained in
applicable state law, if each of the Local Government Unit considers and approves a concurrent
resolution directing the Board of Directors to proceed with the dissolution of the Corporation, the
Board of Directors shall promptly proceed with the dissolution of the Corporation. The failure of
the Board of Directors to promptly proceed with the dissolution of the Corporation in accordance
with this Article XIII shall be deemed a cause for the removal from office of any or all of the
Directors as permitted by Article IV of these Bylaws.

Section 13.03. Assets Distribution and Liabilities. Upon the dissolution of the Corporation:
a. The assets of the Corporation shall be distributed among the Local Government Unit in
accordance with the percentage of each Local Government Unit contribution to the
purchase of the assets of the Corporation; and

b. Any remaining liabilities of the Corporation shall be allocated as follows:

(1) if'the liability was incurred for the benefit of fewer than all of the Local Government
Unit, the liability shall be allocated to those County and cities for whom the benefit
was incurred based on the agreement of the benefited Local Government Unit; and

(2) if the liability was incurred for the benefit of all of the Local Government Unit, the
liability shall be based on the percentage of each Local Government Unit
contributions to the purchase of the assets of the Corporation.

Nothing in these Bylaws shall prohibit the Local Government Unit from agreeing to an
allocation of assets and liabilities contrary to this Article provided such agreement is not contrary
to applicable state law.

Effective: December 7, 2020
Revised: October 6, 2025, December 10, 2025

December 10, 2025

25 of 40

Item 4.b




EL PASO TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
December 10, 2025
SUBJECT:

Appoint John Andoh, El Paso County Director of Transit Operations to represent the El
Paso County Mass Transit Agency (a County of EI Paso Department) on the El Paso
Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) Policy Board. (Presented by Jackie Butler,
Chair)

INFORMATION:

Due to changes made to the El Paso Metropolitan Planning Organization (EPMPO)
bylaws preventing a double quorum between local governments, Chair Jackie Butler is
not able to continue to represent the “El Paso County Mass Transit Agency” on the
EPMPO Policy Board. The previous Board item requested the El Paso Transportation
Authority (ETA) Board of Directors to consider changes to the bylaws so that either an
ETA Director or the ETA Executive Director can serve on the EPMPO Policy Board
representing the interests of ETA acting through the El Paso County Mass Transit
Agency, a department of El Paso County.

It is recommended that John Andoh, as the ETA Executive Director and El Paso County
Director of Transit Operations, to be appointed by the ETA Board of Directors serve on
the EPMPO Policy Board, effective December 19, 2025 and through the Executive
Committee, Mr. Andoh would receive direction on how to represent the interests of the
ETA and the “El Paso County Mass Transit Agency” appropriately. It should be noted
that the Sun Metro’s Director of Mass Transit is also appointed on the EPMPO Policy
Board, representing the City of El Paso Mass Transit Department, separate and apart
from the City of El Paso representation.

Once ETA formally separates from El Paso County next year, ETA will need to formally
request its own seat on the EPMPO Board of Directors since the seat currently assigned
as “El Paso County Mass Transit Agency” (which is managed by ETA through an
interlocal agreement with El Paso County) assumes that the transit system is a part of El
Paso County government and that there is no “County-wide Mass Transit Authority”
created under Texas Transportation Code, Section 457 in El Paso County.

ATTACHMENTS:

None.

December 10, 2025 26 of 40

Item 4.c




EL PASO TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
December 10, 2025
SUBJECT:

Appoint the Chair, Vice Chair and one voting member to the Executive Committee and
to approve the work program of the Executive Committee. (Presented by Jackie Butler,
Chair)

INFORMATION:

On February 21, 2024, the El Paso Transportation Authority (ETA) Board of Directors
appointed three members to the Executive Committee which were Michelle Garcia, Jose
Landeros and Mike Medina. On April 17, 2024, the Board of Directors approved a
proposed meeting schedule of May 1, 2024, June 5, 2024, July 10, 2024, August 7, 2024,
and September 4, 2024. It is unknown by staff if the Executive Committee met, as there
are no agendas or minutes documenting the meeting.

On February 26, 2025, it was proposed to discuss the Sun Metro proposal that was
reviewed by the Executive Committee, however, no action was taken.

On May 21, 2025, it was proposed to discuss and take appropriate action regarding the
appointment and structure of the Executive Committee, however, the item was deleted.

On October 29, 2025, the Board of Directors requested an opinion on the roles and
responsibilities of the Executive Committee from the ETA attorney.

On December 2, 2025, the item was deleted from the agenda, as this was discussed in
Closed Meeting regarding the role of a restructured Executive Committee and action was
directed to discuss this at a special meeting to be held in December 2025.

Based on the discussions at the December 2, 2025 Board Meeting, it is recommended
that the Board of Directors initiate the Executive Committee that would consist of the
Chair, Vice Chair and one voting member that would provide direction to the Executive
Director prior to an El Paso Metropolitan Planning Organization Policy Board meeting to
discuss the agenda and any implications to ETA.

December 10, 2025 27 of 40

Item 4.d




Furthermore, the Executive Committee could include oversight and review of board rules
and structure, agency policies, legislative planning, government relations and
communications strategies. The Executive Committee could also evaluate systemwide
program strategies and budgets, interviews the candidates for the Executive Director
position, acts in the Executive Director’s absence and the reviews the Executive Director’s
performance prior to full discussions with the Board of Directors. All actions of the
Executive Committee are reported to the full Board at its next regularly scheduled
meeting.

This item was originally requested by Karl Rimkus of Sun Metro for discussion by the
Board of Directors.

The ETA Attorney has provided a legal opinion regarding the formation of the Executive
Committee and what powers the Executive Committee could do. Staff, at the request of
the Board of Directors, is providing samples of what other Executive Committees do. It
should be noted that many larger transit authorities created Executive Committees,
whereas systems the size of ETA did not have one.

ATTACHMENTS:

e Legal Opinion
e Executive Committee Bylaws Examples.

December 10, 2025 28 0f 40

Item 4.d




NICKLAUS A. JIMENEZ
Nick.Jimenez@kempsmith.com

October 22, 2025

VIA EMAIL: JJANDOH@EPCOUNTYTX.GOV

John C. Andoh, CCTM, CPM, TDM-CP
Executive Director

800 East Overland Avenue, Room 423
El Paso, TX 79901

RE:  Authority of EPATS Board to Vest Powers in an Executive Committee Under
Bylaws and Texas Law.

Mr. Andoh,

During the Board meeting of the El Paso Area Transportation Services, LGC (“EPATS”)
held on October 22, 2025, the Board discussed Agenda Item 6h concerning the purpose and
appointment of members to the Executive Committee. It was reported that the committee had been
established in February 2024 but was now dormant because its three appointed members were no
longer serving. The discussion centered on whether the committee should be reestbalished and, if
so, whether it could lawfully be vested with any of the powers of the Board of Directors. It was
mentioned that comparable transit authorities maintain small executive committees, typically
including the Chair, Vice Chair, and one additional member, to facilitate coordination, policy
review, and agenda preparation between regular meetings.

The consensus among members was that such a body could improve efficiency, provided
it did not infringe upon the decision-making authority of the full Board. At the conclusion of the
discussion, I was asked to provide a legal opinion addressing whether, under the EPATS Bylaws,
the Texas Open Meetings Act (“TOMA™), and the Local Government Corporation Act, the Board
may lawfully vest an executive committee with the powers of the Board of Directors. The
following represents my legal analysis of that question.

l. Governing Framework

Section 4.01 of the EPATS Bylaws provides that “All powers of the Corporation shall be
vested in the Board of Directors.” This provision vests ultimate corporate authority in the full
Board and limits delegation solely to advisory or ministerial functions. No other section authorizes
a smaller body to exercise binding powers of the Corporation.

Section 4.06 further provides that “any committee of the Board of Directors exercising the
powers of the Board ... shall meet in accordance with and file notices ... as required by Chapter
551 of the Texas Government Code (the ‘Open Meetings Act’).” This clause does not independently

221 N. Kansas St. 1301 Nueces Street 4131 Camino Coyote Lane
Suite 1700 Suite 100 Suite B

El Paso, TX 79901 Austin, TX 78701 Las Cruces, NM 88011
915 533-4424 512 320-5466 575 527-0023
Kempsmith.com Kempsmith.com Kempsmith.com

December 10, 2025 29 of 40

Item 4.d



mailto:j.andoh@epcountytx.gov

Mr. John Andoh
October 22, 2025
Page 2 of 3

authorize delegation. Instead, it recognizes that any committee purporting to exercise Board
powers must itself comply with TOMA’s notice, quorum, and record-keeping requirements.

Accordingly, as a matter of bylaw construction, all substantive powers remain vested in
the full Board unless expressly permitted by statute or by the bylaws themselves.

1. Application of the Texas Open Meetings Act

Under TOMA and Tex. Att’y Gen. Op. JC-0060 (1999), a committee or sub-quorum group
created by a governmental body is a “governmental body” in its own right if it exercises control
or supervision over public business. In that opinion, the Attorney General determined that a
commissioners-court “Evaluation Committee” with authority to negotiate public contracts was
subject to TOMA because its actions effectively bound the court. Conversely, if that committee
were purely advisory and excluded commissioners, it would not be subject to TOMA. See also
Tex. Att’y Gen. Op. H-994 (1977) (advisory committee not subject to TOMA).

Finlan v. City of Dallas, 888 F. Supp. 779 (N.D. Tex. 1995), further confirms that a sub-
quorum committee is a “governmental body” when it conducts negotiations or otherwise exercises
effective control over public business, requiring full compliance with posting, openness, quorum,
and record-keeping rules. The court rejected the argument that a less-than-quorum “Downtown
Sports Development Committee” was exempt because it “cut deals” behind closed doors involving
millions of dollars of public funds, finding that such conduct violated both the City Charter and
TOMA'’s purpose of public transparency. Id. at 785-86. Finlan also held that the real-estate
exception under TEX. GOV’T CODE § 551.072 does not permit bargaining with third parties in
private, only closed briefings with staff to protect the body’s negotiating position. Id. at 786-87.
Notices must “specifically and fully disclose” the subjects to be considered; bare statutory citations
are inadequate. Id. at 790 (citing Cox Enters. v. Bd. of Trustees, Austin 1.S.D., 706 S.W.2d 956,
959-60 (Tex. 1986)). The court permanently enjoined further closed meetings and directed full
compliance with TOMA. Id. at 791-92.

Applying these authorities, if EPATS were to reestablish its Executive Committee and
delegate to binding or supervisory authority, such as negotiating, approving, or directing contracts,
policies, or employment matters, it would be considered a governmental body under TOMA and
would have to post public notice, meet openly, and comply with all procedural safeguards
applicable to the full Board. Conversely, a purely advisory Executive Committee, limited to
review, study, or recommendation, would not independently trigger TOMA but must still avoid
“walking-quorum” discussions among Board members outside a posted meeting.

I11.  Non-Delegable Board Functions

Certain functions are reserved to the governing board and cannot be delegated under either
Texas law or the EPATS Bylaws. These include fiduciary supervision of corporate assets, budget
adoption, approval of major policy initiatives, and employment or evaluation of the Executive
Director. Section 2.01 of the Bylaws places these responsibilities squarely within the exclusive
authority of the full Board.

December 10, 2025 30 of 40

Item 4.d




Mr. John Andoh
October 22, 2025
Page 3 of 3

V. Conclusion

Based on the discussion held at the October 22, 2025 meeting and the authorities cited
above, it is my opinion that while the Board may reestablish an Executive Committee for advisory
or administrative purposes, it cannot lawfully vest that committee with substantive decision-
making powers. Both Section 4.01 of the EPATS Bylaws and TOMA’s functional requirements,
as interpreted in Tex. Att’y Gen. Op. JC-0060 (1999) and Finlan v. City of Dallas, 888 F. Supp.
779 (N.D. Tex. 1995), direct that all binding actions remain with the full Board of Directors. Any
Executive Committee should therefore operate solely in an advisory capacity, making
recommendations for consideration and formal action by the full Board in a properly noticed open

meeting.

CC:

Respectfully submitted,

KEMP SMITH LLP

By:
Nicklaus A. Jiménez

Jackie Butler (Chair) - J.Butler@epcounty.com
David Stout - Stout@epcounty.com

Joel Bishop - J.Bishop@epcountytx.gov

Art Rubio - arubio@horizoncity.org

Eddie Conde - econde(@cityofsanelizario.com
Andrea Carrillo - acarrillo@vintontx.us

Daniel Vallejo - dvallejo@clinttexas.com
Arnulfo Castaneda - finance@townofanthony.org
Karl Rimkus - rimkuskc(@elpasotexas.gov
Harrison Plourde - plourdeht@elpasompo.org
Xavier Banales - xbanales03@gmail.com
Alejandra Valadez - avaladez@costx.us
Annette Gutierrez - annetteg(@riocog.org

December 10, 2025

31 0f 40

Item 4.d



mailto:J.Butler@epcounty.com
mailto:Stout@epcounty.com
mailto:J.Bishop@epcountytx.gov
mailto:arubio@horizoncity.org
mailto:econde@cityofsanelizario.com
mailto:acarrillo@vintontx.us
mailto:dvallejo@clinttexas.com
mailto:finance@townofanthony.org
mailto:rimkuskc@elpasotexas.gov
mailto:plourdeht@elpasompo.org
mailto:xbanales03@gmail.com
mailto:avaladez@costx.us
mailto:annetteg@riocog.org

Hampton Roads Transit

Section 2.

Executive Committee.

a. The Commission shall establish an Executive Committee to work with the

President/CEO to coordinate Commission operations and all functional Committees established by
and for the Commission in support of their responsibility to provide governance for the effective

management of HRT.

b. Members of the Executive Committee, will be the Chairperson, Vice

Chairperson, Past Chairperson, the Chairperson of the Commonwealth Transportation Board. or the
Chamrperson’s designee, all of whom will be ex officio, and a Commussioner from each of the
component governments not already represented by an ex officio member of the Executive

Committee.

Comunittee.

(1)

c. Each component government shall be entitled to one vote on the Executive

d. The functions of the Executive Committee shall be:
To oversee the functioning of the full Commission, which mvolves all Committees.

(2) To ensure that the position description for the President/CEO 1s
updated as necessary to reflect changing needs, prionties, and circumstances of HRT.

(3) To annually negotiate President/CEO performance targets and
evaluate progress and performance in accomplishing such targets.

(4) To oversee and develop the Annual Retreat agenda and activities
through staff-supported Annual Retreat Task Force.

(5) To oversee legislative and external relations of the Commission with
respect to:
(A) Overseeing the  development, implementation and
maintenance of strategies for HRT umage-building, public relations, and for positive
relationships with key, external interested parties.

(B) Assisting 1 the development and mplementation of
legislative policies and strategies and making recommendations to the full
Commnussion for adoption of such policies and strategies.

(&) Advising staff on major public relations promotions, public
events, and advertising campaigns.

(D) To develop and maintain an updated profile of preferred

Commuission member attributes and qualifications, and to execute strategies to ensure
that qualified candidates are appointed to fill Commission vacancies.

December 10, 2025 32 0of 40

Item 4.d




Item 4.d

(6) To develop and oversee execution of a formal Commission member
capacity building program, including such elements as orientation of new members,
education and training.

(7) The Executive Committee will meet at such times when the
Commission 1s not meetmg and will consider such matters as may be brought before
it and make its recommendations to the Commission.

€. The Executive Committee may make rules for the holding and conduct of its
meetings, notice requirements and the keeping of minutes or records.

f. The Transit Riders Advisory Subcommittee and the Paratransit Advisory
Subcommittee shall be subcommittees of the Executive Committee

Central Midlands Regional Transit Authority

Section 6.2.  Executive Committee. The membership of the Executive Committee shall
consist of five Voting Directors.

The five Voting Directors shall be the Chair, Vice-Chair, the Secretary, the Treasurer and the
Chair of the Service Commuttee. If the Chair of the service comumittee is serving as an officer of the
Board, the Board Chair shall appoint the fifth member of the Executive Committee.

The Chair, Vice-Chair, and Secretary shall serve in those capacities on the Executive Commuttee.
A quorum of the Executive Committee shall consist of a majority of the members. During times between
Board meetings or in the absence of quorum for any Board meeting, the Executive Comunittee may
exercise any and all powers vested in the Board with respect to operations of the Authority in the normal
course of business. Such matters would include but not be limited to authorization of and execution of
necessary documents in connection with grant applications and contracts. Such matters would not include
personnel decisions; amendments to Bylaws or amendments to the Intergovernmental Agreement;
contractual matters involving the procurement of vehicles or selection of a contract operator; and service
changes.

Pineallas Suncoast Transit Authority

Section 2.09 Commitiees

A There is hereby established the Executive Committee of the
Board of Directors. The Committee shall be composed of the Board's
executive  officers (Chairperson, Vice-Chairperson and
Secretary/Treasurer), the immediate past Board Chairperson, and a
Board member appointed by the Board. If a vacancy is created
because the immediate past Board Chairperson is no longer a

December 10, 2025 33 0of 40



Item 4.d

member of the Board, another Board member appointed by the
Board shall fill the remainder of the term of the vacated position. The
Executive Committee shall consist of up to five (5) members. The
purpose of this committee generally is to deliberate and provide
direction on significant policy-level issues to the Board and CEO,
iIncluding recommending organizational goals to the full Board and
monitoring progress on those organizational goals. The Executive
Committee will support the decisions of the Board and will oversee
and make recommendations on the Board Committees, and overall
governance of the PSTA organization. It is not intended that the
Executive Committee will make decisions on items that are to be
decided by the Board as a whole, except as specifically authorized
by the Board. The Executive Committee will conduct a performance
review of the Agency’'s CEO/ED at the time provided for in the
contract with the CEO/ED. Each Board member shall be provided an
opportunity to offer their evaluation of the CEO/ED. All evaluations
completed by Board members shall be considered by the Executive
Committee in conducting the CEO/ED’s annual performance review
and in making its recommendation to the Board for any salary
adjustment. The Executive Committee will also establish with the
CEO/ED a set of mutually acceptable strategic plans for the next
year. The Executive Committee will develop an annual performance
review and evaluation process based on the implementation of the
Agency’s agreed upon strategic direction, demonstrated evidence of
leadership skills and attitude, and any other areas of performance as
designated by the Executive Committee.

Cape Cod Regional Transit Authority

2.4.2 Standing Committees. There shall be the following standing committees of the Advisory
Board:

Executive: Chairman, Vice Chairman, Clerk. It shall be the responsibility of the
Executive Committee to convene on a regular basis to hear reports of the
Administrator and to act on matters coming before accordingly. All actions of the
Executive Committee shall be reported to the full Advisory Board at its next
regularly scheduled meeting. It shall be the responsibility of the Executive
Committee to recommend the yearly goals of the Authority to the Advisory Board
that may include budget, ridership, personnel, fare and service.

December 10, 2025 34 of 40



Transit Authority of River City

Sound Transit

The Executive Committee's responsibilities include oversight and review of board rules
and structure, agency policies, legislative planning, government relations and
communications strategies. The committee also evaluates systemwide program
strategies and budgets and the CEQO's performance. The committee has the authority to
approve transactions for systemwide programs that exceed the CEQO's level of authority
and are under $50 million.

HART

December 10, 2025 35 0f40

Item 4.d




EL PASO TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
December 10, 2025

SUBJECT:

Approve revised Capitalization Policy to increase threshold to $10,000 per recent
changes to 2 CFR 200. (Presented by John Andoh, Executive Director)

INFORMATION:

The purpose of the update to the policy is to establish procedural requirements
associated with fixed asset acquisition, recording, and monitoring, in accordance with
Federal Transit Administration Circular 5010.1F, under 49 U.S.C. Chapter 53, Office
of Management and Budget guidelines, 2 CFR 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Award and
Department of Transportation policy and regulations which defines the threshold for
fixed assets.

The Office of Management and Budget (OMB) increased the thresholds to $10,000
from $5,000 and therefore staff recommends that El Paso Transportation Authority
(ETA) Board of Directors approved the change in threshold for capitalization to
$10,000.

The Government Finance Officers Association recommends increasing capitalization
limits to the federal levels for consistency.

ATTACHMENTS:

e Revised Capitalization Policy
e Federal Register.

December 10, 2025 36 of 40

Item 4.e




EL PASO TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

Item 4.e

CAPITALIZATION POLICY
Revised December 10, 2025

BACKGROUND

As a recipient of grant funding, El Paso Transportation Authority (ETA) must comply with
various federal, state and local requirements with regard to fixed asset controls and
reporting. ETA will comply with these regulations in addition to sound fiscal management
procedures within budgetary guidelines.

To ensure full compliance with the requirements of federal and state grants, ETA has
established procedures consistent with the general grant management procedures
provided under Federal Transit Administration Circular 5010.1F, as amended under 49
U.S.C. Chapter 53, Office of Management and Budget (OMB) guidelines, 2 CFR 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Award and Department of Transportation (DOT) policies and regulations.

PURPOSE

The purpose of this policy is to establish procedural requirements associated with the
acquisition, disposal, fixed asset recording and monitoring processes.

POLICY

It is the policy of ETA to maintain accurate and complete records of property, buildings
and equipment held and to capitalize and depreciate them according to appropriate
accounting and regulatory requirements. Once an asset’s cost is capitalized, it will be
depreciated, in a systematic manner, over the estimated useful life of the asset.

Fixed Asset Definition:

Capital assets are to be capitalized and depreciated only if they have an estimated useful
life of over 12 months following the date of acquisition, have a historical cost that meets
the $10,000 threshold (including ancillary cost) per individual asset.

Planning Process for Fixed Asset Acquisition:

ETA staff will review the fixed asset needs of ETA through three (3) principle
sub-functions:

1) The equipment needs of ETA should be identified through the
Transit Development Plan (TDP) and Transit Asset Management
(TAM) plan which identifies the basic equipment replacement needs
of ETA as well as defining future equipment needed to implement
the service plan defined in the TDP.

2) A more detailed approach to ETA and grant funded short-term

equipment needs is defined in the Capital Improvement Plan phase
of the annual/bi-annual budget development process.

December 10, 2025 37 of 40




3) Unanticipated equipment needs that arise during the fiscal year are

Item 4.e

addressed on a case by case basis by the Executive Director in
conjunction with Finance.

The last method is primarily for use in ETA purchased assets or in response to
emergency requirements (to be determined by the Executive Director in
accordance with ETA Procurement Policy.)

Monitoring Fixed Assets:

1) A physical inventory of ETA's fixed assets will be conducted every
year in compliance with FTA regulations.

2) A Subsidiary Fixed Assets Ledger is maintained by ETA Finance
which records the following required information:

Title (i.e. who holds title to the asset)

Description

Tag Number

Identification Number

Date in service

Acquisition Date

Cost of Asset

Funding source(s) - including percentage of Federal

participation in the cost

Depreciation

Location

Use

Condition status

Disposal date - when applicable

Useful life

The capitalization and subsequent addition to inventory is made on the payment date.
Depreciation is done on a straight line basis. Asset life is based on General
Acceptable Accounting Principles (GAAP) guidelines as well as the 2 CFR 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Award.

Year-End Accounting Procedures:

At year-end, ETA Finance will reconcile expenditures per activity listings of capital
accounts to the fixed asset maintenance file, adjusting any differences identified.
Capital purchases using multiple account numbers that should have been recorded
as a capital purchase should be verified via the purchase order, printed and adjusted to
balance the fixed asset records.

Disposition Forms/Transfers:

All interdepartmental transfers of inventory with a value of $10,000 or greater must be
reported on a property disposition form. The transfer form identifies fixed assets
transferred to their new assigned locations. The information on the disposition form is
recorded and verified in the fixed asset records. The completed inventory transfer form
must be signed by the Executive Director and ETA Finance before an asset can be

physically moved from one location to the next.
December 10, 2025 38 0f 40




EL PASO TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
December 10, 2025

SUBJECT:

Discuss findings regarding persons necessary in the Closed Meeting. (Presented by
John Andoh, Executive Director)

INFORMATION:

The purpose of this item is to determine who should be determined necessary to
participate in the Closed Meeting.

ATTACHMENTS:

None.

December 10, 2025 39 0of 40

Item 5.a




Item 6.a

EL PASO TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
December 10, 2025

SUBJECT:

Consider and take action on matters discussed in closed meeting.

INFORMATION:

Should the Board of Directors have a Closed Meeting, the Board of Directors will
consider action taken on items discussed in the Closed Meeting.

ATTACHMENTS:

None.

December 10, 2025 40 of 40



	Agenda
	4.a December 2, 2025 Minutes.docx.pdf
	4.a ETA.Minutes.12.2.25.pdf
	4.b Revisions to bylaws.docx.pdf
	4.b Pages from Bylaws Change.pdf
	4.b 10567-OP EPATS Revised Bylaws v2 (FINAL 12.15.2025).pdf
	4.c Appointment.JA.MPO.docx.pdf
	4.d Appoint the Chair, Vice Chair and one voting member to the Executive Committee and to approve the work program of the Executive Committee. (Presented by Jackie Butler, Chair)12.10.25.docx.pdf
	4.d EPATS Executive Committee Authority - TOMA and Bylaws Analysis (10.22.25).pdf
	4.d Executive Committee Examples.pdf
	4.e Approve revised Capitalization Policy to increase threshold to $10,000 per recent changes to 2 CFR 200. (Presented by John Andoh, Executive Director) 12.10.25.docx.pdf
	4.e Capitalization Policy.pdf
	5.a Discuss findings regarding persons necessary in the Closed Meeting. (Presented by John Andoh, Executive Director)12.10.25.docx.pdf
	6.a Consider and take action on matters discussed in closed session.12.10.25.docx.pdf

